

CHAPTER 124

COMPENSATION OF BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

H. F. 704

AN ACT raising the compensation paid to members of certain boards and commissions.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

1 SECTION 1. Section eight A point eleven (8A.11), Code 1973, is
2 amended to read as follows:

3 **8A.11 Expenses.** The members of both the council and the board
4 shall ~~serve without compensation but shall be entitled to be paid a~~
5 ~~forty dollar per diem and be reimbursed for~~ travel and actual and
6 necessary expenses involved in attending meetings and in the per-
7 formance of their duties. *All per diem and expense moneys paid to the*
8 *members shall be paid from funds appropriated to the department of*
9 *general services.*

1 SEC. 2. Section eighteen A point five (18A.5), Code 1973, is
2 amended to read as follows:

3 **18A.5 Compensation and expenses.** The members of the commis-
4 sion shall be ~~paid reimbursed for~~ their actual and necessary expenses
5 ~~and shall be paid a forty dollar per diem while in attendance at any~~
6 meeting of the commission held at the seat of government and ~~in shall~~
7 ~~be reimbursed for their expenses for going to and from the seat of~~
8 government to attend a meeting of such commission and while attend-
9 ing the same. *All per diem and expense moneys paid to the commis-*
10 *sioners shall be paid from funds appropriated to the commission.*
11 Service of the superintendent of buildings and grounds and the state
12 architect upon this commission shall be an additional duty conferred
13 by statute.

1 SEC. 3. Section twenty-eight point two (28.2), Code 1973, is
2 amended to read as follows:

3 **28.2 Compensation and expenses.** The members of the commis-
4 sion shall ~~receive such compensation as may be allowed by the general~~
5 ~~assembly be paid a forty dollar per diem and they shall be reimbursed~~
6 for their actual and necessary expense ~~actually~~ incurred in performing
7 their duties as members of the commission. *All per diem and expense*
8 *moneys paid to the members shall be paid from funds appropriated to*
9 *the commission.*

1 SEC. 4. Section sixty-seven point twelve (67.12), Code 1973, is
2 amended to read as follows:

3 **67.12 Compensation of commissioners.** ~~Said These~~ commissioners
4 shall each ~~receive for the time actually employed in the performancee~~
5 ~~of their duties the sum of ten dollars per day and their be paid a forty~~
6 ~~dollar per diem and be reimbursed for~~ actual and necessary expenses,
7 which sum shall be paid out of any unappropriated funds in the state
8 treasury.

1 SEC. 5. Section eighty B point eight (80B.8), Code 1973, is
2 amended to read as follows:

3 **80B.8 Travel Compensation and expense allowance expenses.** The
4 members of the council shall ~~serve without compensation but be paid~~

5 *a forty dollar per diem and shall be entitled to travel reimbursed for*
 6 *necessary and actual expenses involved incurred in attending meetings*
 7 *and in the performance of their duties. All per diem and expense*
 8 *moneys paid to members shall be paid from funds appropriated to the*
 9 *Iowa law enforcement academy.*

1 SEC. 6. Section eighty-two point two (82.2),* unnumbered para-
 2 graph two (2), Code 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 Two members of the mining board shall be persons who, by reason
 4 of previous training and experience, may reasonably be considered to
 5 represent the viewpoint of mine workmen, and two members shall be
 6 persons who, by reason of previous training and experience, may
 7 reasonably be considered to represent the viewpoint of mine operators.
 8 One member of the board, who shall be chairman of the board, and
 9 serve as a representative of the public, shall not, within one year of
 10 his appointment as a member of the board, have had a pecuniary
 11 interest in, or engaged in, the mining of coal or other minerals, or have
 12 been an officer or representative of either mine workers or operators.
 13 ~~Each member of the board shall, in addition to necessary traveling and~~
 14 ~~hotel expenses, receive twenty dollars per day while actually engaged~~
 15 ~~in the performance of work of the board. No~~ *The members of the*
 16 *board shall be paid a forty dollar per diem and shall be reimbursed for*
 17 *actual and necessary expenses incurred under the provisions of this*
 18 *chapter. A member of the board shall not receive more than four eight*
 19 *hundred dollars in per diem compensation in any one year. All per*
 20 *diem and expense moneys paid to the members shall be paid from*
 21 *funds appropriated to the department of mines and minerals.*

1 SEC. 7. Section ninety point seven (90.7), Code 1973, is amended
 2 to read as follows:

3 **90.7 Compensation and expenses.** ~~The members of the board shall~~
 4 ~~receive a compensation of five dollars be paid a forty dollar per diem~~
 5 ~~for the time actually employed, together with their traveling and other~~
 6 ~~and shall be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses, the same~~
 7 ~~these moneys to be payable out of the state treasury upon warrants~~
 8 ~~drawn by the state comptroller.~~

1 SEC. 8. Section one hundred seven point five (107.5), Code 1973,
 2 is amended to read as follows:

3 **107.5 Compensation.** ~~Each member~~ *The members of the commis-*
 4 ~~sion shall receive the sum of twenty-five dollars be paid a forty dollar~~
 5 ~~per diem and be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses for each~~
 6 ~~day actually and necessarily employed in the discharge of official~~
 7 ~~duties, provided said compensation; however, the per diem shall not~~
 8 ~~exceed one thousand six hundred dollars for each fiscal year. All per~~
 9 ~~diem moneys paid to members shall be paid from funds appropriated~~
 10 ~~to the commission.~~

1 SEC. 9. Section one hundred thirty-five point fourteen (135.14),
 2 Code 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 **135.14 Compensation and expenses.** ~~The members master plumber~~
 4 ~~and journeyman plumber member of the committee shall receive no~~
 5 ~~compensation for their services, but they be paid a forty dollar per~~
 6 ~~diem and shall receive their be reimbursed for actual and necessary~~

*Repealed by ch. 139, §31, herein.

7 ~~traveling and hotel~~ expenses in discharging the duties prescribed in
8 section 135.13.

1 SEC. 10. Section one hundred thirty-five B point eleven (135B.11),
2 subsection two (2), Code 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 2. To review and approve such rules, regulations and standards
4 authorized hereunder prior to their promulgation by the department
5 of health as specified herein.

6 The members of the board *shall be paid a forty dollar per diem and*
7 *shall receive no compensation or be reimbursed for actual and neces-*
8 *sary expenses for their services incurred as members thereof. All per*
9 *diem moneys paid to the members shall be paid from funds appropri-*
10 *ated to the state department of health.*

1 SEC. 11. Section one hundred thirty-six point nine (136.9), Code
2 1973, is amended by striking the section and inserting in lieu thereof
3 the following:

4 **136.9 Compensation and expenses.** The members of the board
5 shall be paid a forty dollar per diem and shall be reimbursed for actual
6 and necessary expenses for each day employed in the discharge of their
7 duties. All per diem and expense moneys paid to the members shall be
8 paid from funds appropriated to the state department of health.

1 SEC. 12. Section two hundred forty-nine B point six (249B.6),
2 Code 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 **249B.6 Compensation and expenses.** The members of the commis-
4 sion, and noncommission members serving on commission subcommit-
5 tees, shall ~~receive no compensation for their services other than reim-~~
6 ~~bursement~~ *be paid a forty dollar per diem and shall be reimbursed for*
7 *traveling and other actual and necessary expenses actually incurred in*
8 *the performance of their official duties. Commission per diem and*
9 *expenses, including the salary of the executive secretary and any office*
10 *expenses, shall be paid from funds made available to the commission*
11 *by the general assembly.*

1 SEC. 13. Section two hundred fifty-seven point six (257.6), Code
2 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 **257.6 Per diem of members Compensation and expenses.** The
4 members of the state board shall be ~~allowed~~ *paid a forty dollar per*
5 *diem of thirty dollars and their shall be reimbursed for actual and*
6 *necessary travel and expense expenses incurred while engaged in their*
7 *official duties. All per diem and expense moneys paid to the members*
8 *shall be paid from funds appropriated to the department of public*
9 *instruction.*

1 SEC. 14. Section two hundred sixty-one point four (261.4), Code
2 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 **261.4 Funds—comptroller—compensation of commission and ex-**
4 **penses.** The state comptroller shall keep an accounting of all funds
5 received and expended by the commission. ~~Commission members not~~
6 ~~regularly paid employees of the state~~ *The members of the commission,*
7 *except those members who are employees of the state, shall be paid a*
8 *forty dollar per diem of twenty dollars and shall be reimbursed for*
9 *actual and necessary expenses which amount is hereby appropriated*
10 *from funds available to the commission and paid upon warrants issued*

11 by the state comptroller. *All per diem and expense moneys paid to*
 12 *members shall be paid from funds appropriated to the commission.*

1 SEC. 15. Section three hundred three point twenty (303.20), Code
 2 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 **303.20 Compensation and expenses.** *All The members of the board*
 4 *shall be paid a forty dollar per diem and shall be reimbursed for the*
 5 *actual and necessary expenses incurred by them in the discharge of*
 6 *their duties, and the same shall be paid in the same manner as other*
 7 *expenses incurred by the board. They shall receive no compensation*
 8 *for services. All per diem and expense moneys paid to the members*
 9 *shall be paid from funds appropriated to the board.*

1 SEC. 16. Section three hundred twenty-eight point six (328.6),
 2 Code 1973, is amended by striking the section and inserting in lieu
 3 thereof the following:

4 **328.6 Compensation and expenses.** The members of the commis-
 5 sion shall be paid a forty dollar per diem and shall be reimbursed for
 6 actual and necessary expenses incurred under the provisions of this
 7 chapter; however, a member shall not receive more than one thousand
 8 nine hundred dollars per diem for each fiscal year. All per diem and
 9 expense moneys paid to members shall be paid from funds appropri-
 10 ated to the commission.

1 SEC. 17. Section four hundred fifty-five A point seven (455A.7),
 2 Code 1973, is amended by striking the section and inserting in lieu
 3 thereof the following:

4 **455A.7 Compensation and expenses.** The members of the council,
 5 except those members who are employees of the state or any political
 6 subdivision, shall be paid a forty dollar per diem and shall be reim-
 7 bursed for actual and necessary expenses incurred under the provisions
 8 of this chapter; however, a member shall not receive more than three
 9 thousand two hundred dollars per diem for each fiscal year. All per
 10 diem and expense moneys paid to members shall be paid from funds
 11 appropriated to the council. A member of the council shall not have a
 12 direct financial interest in, or profit by any of the operations of the
 13 council.

1 SEC. 18. Section four hundred fifty-five B point four (455B.4),
 2 unnumbered paragraph three (3), Code 1973, is amended to read as
 3 follows:

4 Each commission shall meet at least four times a year. Other meet-
 5 ings shall be called by the chairman or upon written request of a
 6 majority of the members of the commission. The chairman shall pre-
 7 side at all meetings or in his absence the vice-chairman shall preside.
 8 The executive director shall attend the meetings of the commissions
 9 and act as secretary for them. The members of each commission shall
 10 be paid a *forty dollar* per diem ~~of thirty dollars~~ while in session, ten
 11 cents a mile for travel, and their ~~reasonable~~ *actual* and necessary
 12 expenses while attending such meetings. *All per diem and expense*
 13 *moneys paid to members shall be paid from funds appropriated to the*
 14 *commission of which they are members.*

1 SEC. 19. Section four hundred fifty-five B point fifty-five
 2 (455B.55), Code 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 **455B.55 Organization.** The initial board of certification shall or-
 4 ganize and elect a chairman from its membership. Thereafter, a chair-
 5 man shall be elected at the last meeting of the fiscal year which shall
 6 be the annual meeting of the board. The member of the board em-
 7 ployed by the department shall serve as secretary and maintain its
 8 records. Additional meetings may be held at the call of the chairman.
 9 Three members shall constitute a quorum. The members of the board
 10 shall ~~serve without compensation, except~~ *be paid a forty dollar per*
 11 *diem and shall be reimbursed* for actual and necessary expenses in-
 12 curred while discharging their official duties. *All per diem and expense*
 13 *moneys paid to the members shall be paid from funds appropriated to*
 14 *the board.*

1 SEC. 20. Section four hundred sixty-seven A point four (467A.4),
 2 subsection three (3), Code 1973, is amended to read as follows:
 3 3. The committee shall designate its chairman, and may, from time
 4 to time, change such designation. The director of the state agricul-
 5 tural extension service shall hold office so long as he shall retain the
 6 office by virtue of which he shall be serving on the committee. The
 7 members appointed by the governor shall serve for a period of six
 8 years. Members shall be appointed in each odd-numbered year to
 9 succeed members whose terms expire on June 30 of that year.
 10 Appointments may be made at such other times and for such other
 11 periods as are necessary to fill vacancies on the committee, and any
 12 appointment so made while the general assembly is not in session shall
 13 be subject to confirmation by the senate at the next session of the
 14 general assembly thereafter. No members shall be appointed to serve
 15 more than two complete six-year terms. Members designated to repre-
 16 sent the secretary of agriculture, director of the state conservation
 17 commission, or the director of the Iowa natural resources council shall
 18 serve at the pleasure of the officer making such designation. A major-
 19 ity of the voting members of the committee shall constitute a quorum,
 20 and the concurrence of a majority of the voting members of the com-
 21 mittee in any matter within their duties shall be required for its
 22 determination. The chairman and members of the committee, not
 23 otherwise in the employ of the state, or any political subdivision, shall
 24 receive ~~thirty~~ *forty* dollars per diem as compensation for their ser-
 25 vices in the discharge of their duties as members of the committee.
 26 The committee shall determine the number of days for which any
 27 committee member may draw per diem compensation, but the total
 28 number of days for which per diem compensation is allowed for the
 29 entire committee shall not exceed three hundred fifty days per year.
 30 They shall also be entitled to expenses, including traveling expenses,
 31 necessarily incurred in the discharge of their duties as members of such
 32 committee. *The per diem and expenses paid to the committee members*
 33 *shall be paid from funds appropriated to the committee.* The commit-
 34 tee shall provide for the execution of surety bonds for all employees
 35 and officers who shall be entrusted with funds or property, shall pro-
 36 vide for the keeping of a full and accurate record of all proceedings
 37 and of all resolutions, regulations, and orders issued or adopted, and
 38 shall provide for an annual audit of the accounts of receipts and dis-
 39 bursements.

1 SEC. 21. Section five hundred sixty-eight point nine (568.9), Code
2 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 ~~568.9 Commissioners' compensation~~ *Compensation and expenses.*
4 Commissioners, for their services in making such appraisalment shall
5 ~~each be entitled to receive five dollars per day for the actual time~~
6 ~~employed paid a forty dollar per diem and shall be reimbursed for~~
7 ~~actual and necessary expenses. All per diem moneys paid to the com-~~
8 ~~missioners shall be paid from funds appropriated to the secretary of~~
9 ~~state.~~

1 SEC. 22. Section six hundred one A point four (601A.4), Code
2 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 ~~601A.4 Compensation and expenses—rules.~~ Commissioners shall
4 ~~serve without compensation but be paid a forty dollar per diem and~~
5 ~~shall be reimbursed for necessary travel actual and other necessary~~
6 ~~expenses incurred while on official commission business. All per diem~~
7 ~~and expense moneys paid to commissioners shall be paid from funds~~
8 ~~appropriated to the commission. The commission shall adopt, amend,~~
9 ~~or rescind such rules as shall be necessary for the conduct of its~~
10 ~~meetings. A quorum shall consist of four commissioners.~~

1 SEC. 23. Section six hundred one B point four (601B.4), Code
2 1973, is amended to read as follows:

3 ~~601B.4 Compensation and expenses.~~ The members of the commis-
4 ~~sion shall receive no compensation for their services, but be paid a~~
5 ~~forty dollar per diem and shall be entitled to receive reimbursed for~~
6 ~~their traveling actual and other necessary expenses incurred in the~~
7 ~~performance of their duties as members of the commission. All per~~
8 ~~diem and expense moneys paid to members shall be paid from funds~~
9 ~~appropriated to the commission.~~

Approved June 19, 1973.

CHAPTER 125

MIDWEST NUCLEAR BOARD

S. F. 45

AN ACT providing for representation of the federal government on the midwest nuclear board.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

1 SECTION 1. Section eight B point one (8B.1), Article two (II),
2 paragraph b, Code 1973, is amended by striking the paragraph and
3 inserting in lieu thereof the following:

4 b. The federal government may be represented on the board with-
5 out vote, if provision is made by federal law for such representation.

Approved July 12, 1973.

This Act was passed by the G. A. before July 1, 1973.